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Drescher & Malecki LLP
3083 William Street, Suite 5
Cheektowaga, New York 14227
Telephone: 716.565.2299

Fax: 716.565.2201

Certified Public Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Town Board
Town of Tonawanda, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Tonawanda, New York
(the “Town”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Town’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the anditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Town, as of December 31, 2014, and the respective changes in
financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the vear then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and other Required Supplementary Information, as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with anditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town’s basic financial statements. The Supplementary Information, as
listed in the table of contents and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by U.S.
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Government, and Non-
Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of
the basic financial statements.

The Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents, and the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of
contents and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June
29, 2015, on our consideration of Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards in
considering the Town’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

et & M) e

June 29, 2015






TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Year Ended December 31, 2014

As management of the Town of Tonawanda, New York (the “Town”), we offer readers of the Town’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the
year ended December 31, 2014. This document should be read in conjunction with additional information
that we have furnished in the Town’s financial statements which follow this narrative.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the
close of the most recent fiscal year by $38,500,217 (met position). This consists of
$81,239,107 net investment in capital assets and $9,445,845 restricted for specific
purposes, offset by an unrestricted net deficit of $52,184,735.

e The Town’s governmental activities net position decreased $13,880,011 during the year
ended December 31, 2014.

o At the close of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $19,787,137, a decrease of $3,192,050 in comparison with the
prior year. Excluding the Capital Projects Fund unassigned fund deficit of $16,301,570,
the Town had unrestricted fund balances of $24,206,551; the remainder is subject to
external restrictions (restricted) or is not available for spending (nonspendable).

o The General Fund reported a net decrease in fund balance this year of $5,807. At
December 31, 2014, unassigned fund balance for the General Fund was $3,071,892, or
11.4 percent of total General Fund expenditures and transfers out.

¢ During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Town paid $2,036,366 of its bond
indebtedness and issued $6,819,553 of Environmental Facilities Corporation notes
payable.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. The Town’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements—The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide the reader with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, similar in format to a financial
statement of a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources with the difference between the two reported as ret position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Town is improving or deteriorating.



The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal vear. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in the statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.,
uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the Town include general government, public safety, health,
transportation, economic assistance and opportunity, culure and recreation, and home and community
services. The Town does not engage in any business type activities.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 14-15 of this report,

Fund financial statements—A fisnd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain controi
over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. Al the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds:

Governmental funds—Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same funcrions
reported as governmental acrivities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund statements focus on near-term inflows and
outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s necar-term financing
requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmenial funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental fimds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains eleven individual governmental funds. Information is presented scparately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statememt of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General, General—Town Ouiside Village,
Highway—Town Outside Village, Special Grants, Sewer District, Water District and Capital Projects
Funds, ali of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other four funds are combined
into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental
funds is provided in the form of combining statements in the Supplementary Information section of
this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-19 of this report.



Proprietary funds—The town maintains one type of proprietary fund. Internal Service Funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the Town’s various
functions. The Town uses internal service funds to account for its insurance program. Because this
service predominantly benefits governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been
included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statement,
only in more detail. The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the
insurance program.

The proprietary funds financial statements can be found on pages 20-22.

Fiduciary funds—Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties
outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement
because the resources of those funds are nof available to support the Town’s own programs. The
Town is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended
purpose. The Town maintains one fiduciary fund, the Agency Fund. The fiduciary fund financial
statement can be found on page 23 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements—The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the financial statements can be found on pages 24-51 of this report.

Other information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents required supplementary information concerning the Town’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide postemployment benefits to its employees and the Town’s budgetary comparison for
the General Fund, General—Town Outside Village Fund, Highway—Town Outside Village Fund, Sewer
District Fund, and Water District Fund. Required Supplementary Information and a related note to the
required supplementary information can be found on pages 52-58 of this report.

The combining statements referred fo earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are
presented along with other supplementary information immediately following the Required
Supplementary Information in the Supplementary Information section of this report on pages 59-62 of
this report.

The Federal Awards Information can be found on pages 63-71 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of the Town, assets exceeded liabilities by $38,500,217 at the close of the 2014 fiscal year, as
compared to $52,380,228 at the close of the 2013 fiscal year. Table 1 on the following page, presents a
condensed statement of net position at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013.



Table 1—Condensed Statements of Net Position—Primary Government

Governmental Activities

December 31,
2014 2013
Current assets $ 62,519,253 § 65,699,952
Capital assets 144,185,318 136,356,083
Total assets 206,704,571 202,056,035
Current liabilities 29,443,796 29,027,387
Noncurrent liabilities 130,818,512 112,936,523
Total liabilities 160,262,308 141,963,912
Deferred inflows of resources 7,942,046 7,711,895
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 81,239,107 81,174,737
Restricted 9,445,845 10,925,822
Unresiricted (52,184.735)  (39.720,331)
Total net position S 38,500,217 § 52,380,228

The largest portion of the Town’s net position, $81,239,107, reflects its investment in capital assets (such
as land, buildings. machinery, equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used 1o acquire those
assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens;
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net position, $9,445,845, represents resources that are subject to

external restrictions on how they may be used. There is unrestricted net deficit totaling $52,184,735.

The Town had 2 favorable ratio of current assets to current liabilities of 2.12 at December 31, 2014, a
decrease from 2.27 at December 31, 2013. Such a ratio implies that the Town has sufficient assets on-
hand to meet its current liabilities outstanding at December 31, 2014.



Table 2, as presented below, shows the changes in net position for the years ended December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013:

Table 2—Condensed Statements of Changes in Net Position—Primary Government

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 28,821,666 $ 26,045,006

Operating grants and contributions 2,075,966 2,414,349

Capital grants and coniributions 1,535 2,553,929
General revenues 59,058,528 59,866,291

Total revenues 89,957,695 90,879,575
Program expenses 103,837,706 98,871,466

Change in net assets (13,880,011) (7,991,891)
Net position—beginning of year 52,380,228 60,372,119
Net position—end of year $ 38500217 § 52,380,228

Overall revenues decreased 1.0 percent from the 2013 fiscal year primarily due to decreases in capital
grants and contributions and miscellaneous revenues offset by increases in charges for services and sale
of property and compensation for loss. Overall expenses increased 5.0 percent from 2013 primarily as a
result of increases in home and community services, general government support, and public safety
expenditures.

A summary of sources of revenues of the primary government for the years ended December 31, 2014
and December 31, 2013 is presented below in Table 3:

Table 3—Summary of Sources of Revenues—Governmental Activities

Year Ended December 31, Increase/(decrease)
2014 2013 Dollars Percent (%)
Charges for services $ 28,821,666 $ 26,045,006 $ 2,776,660 10.7
Operating grants and contributions 2,075,966 2,414,349 (338,383) (14.0)
Capital grants and contributions 1,535 2,553,929 (2,552,394)  (99.9)
Property taxes and tax items 46,904,792 47,083,287 {178,495) (04)
Sales tax 7,489,830 7,311,210 178,620 24
Mortgage tax 1,113,017 1,194,594 {81,577) (6.8)
Franchise tax 1,105,554 1,086,552 19,002 1.7
Intergovernmental charges - 78,000 (78,000) n/a
Use of money and property 565,112 617,044 (51,932) (8.4)
Sale of property and compensation for loss 1,123,269 154,334 968,935 6278
Miscellancous 171,755 1,756,071 (1,584,316) (90.2)
Unrestricted state aid 585,199 585,199 - 0.0
Total revenues $ 89,957,695 $ 90,879,575 § (921,880) (1.0)




The most significant source of revenues is property taxes and tax items, which accounts for $46,904,792,
or 52.1 percent of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2014, and $47.083,287, or 51.8 percent
of total revenues, for the year ended December 31, 2013. The next largest source of revenue is charges for
services, which comprises 32.0 percent and 28.7 percent of total revenues for the years ended December
31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

During the vear ended December 31, 2014, capital grants and contributions decreased $2,552,394 from
the vear ended December 31, 2013. This decrease is largely attributed 1o 2 homeland security capital grant
and various State capital grants received and closed during the 2013 fiscal year. No significant capital
grants were awarded and received during the 2014 fiscal year. Additionally, charges for service increased
primarily as the result of a one-time $1,982,752 in intergovernmental charge received from the Economic
Development Corporation for Erie County as a result of an inter-municipal agreement.

A summary of program expenses for the years ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 is
presented below in Table 4.

Table 4—Summary of Program Expenses—Governmental Activities

Year Ended December 31, Increase/{decrease)
2014 2013 Dollars Percent (%)

General government support § 9492257 § 8,671,271 S 820,986 9.5
Public safety 26,835,448 25,596,140 1,239,308 4.8
Health 2,265,970 2,234,152 31,818 1.4
Transportation 11,278,896 10,835,564 443,332 4.1
Economic assistance and opportunity 120,008 113,523 6,485 5.7
Culture and recreation 15,416,623 14,638,308 778,115 5.3
Home and community services 37.466.291 35,975,180 1,491,111 41
Interest and fiscal charges 962,213 807,128 155,085 19.2

$103,837.706 $ 98871466 § 4.966.240 5.0

The Town’s significant program expense items for the year ended December 31, 2014 were home and
community services of $37,466,291 (primarily sewer, water, and sanitation services), public safety of
$26,835,448 (primarily police services), culture and recreation of $15,416,623 and transportation of
$11,278,896. Similarly, for the vear ended December 31, 2013 were home and community services of
$35,975,180 (primarily sewer, water, and sanitation services), public safety of 525,596,140 (primarily
police services), cuiture and recreation of $14,638,508 and transportation of $10,835,564.

During the vear ended December 31, 2014 home and community services and public safety expenses
increased $1,491,111 and $1.239.308, respectively. These increases are primarily due an increased
allocation of employee benefits, compensated absences, and other postemployment benefit costs.

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds

Governmental funds—The focus of the Town’s governmental funds is 1o provide information on near-
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Town’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance and fund balance assigned to
specific use in special revenue funds may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for discretionary use, as they represent the portion of fund balance which has not yet been



limited to use for a particular purpose by either an external party, the Town 1tself, or a group or individual
that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the Town Board.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Town’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $19,787,137, a decrease of $3,192,050 in comparison with the prior year. Excluding the
Capital Project Fund, the Town’s governmental funds combined ending fund balances totaled
$36,088,707. Approximately 45.3 percent, $16,332,986 of this fund balance constitutes unassigned fund
balance for the general fund or fund balance assigned to specific use for the special revenue funds which
is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is nonspendable,
restricted, or committed to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed to finance capital projects, for repairs, leachate, public safety, future retirement costs and
special grants.

A summary of the Town’s major funds’ fund balance is provided below in Table 5.
Table 5—Major Funds’ Fund Balance

General—  Highway—

Town Outside Town Outside  Sewer Water
(General Village Village District Districts
Net change in fund balances $ (5,807) $ 421,831 § 208,193 $(903,531) §$ 618,686
Unassigned or assigned to
the fund's specific use 3,071,892 3,248,984 877,590 3,469,034 3,987,617
Total fund balances (deficit) 7,457,560 7,481,318 1,784,804 7,489,215 7,589,750
Percentage unassigned or
assigned to specific use 41.2% 43.4% 49.2% 46.3% 52.5%

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town. The Town’s General Fund ending fund
balance was $7,457,560. Approximately 41.2 percent, $3,071,892 of this amount is unassigned find
balance. Total fund balance decreased by $5,807 as compared to the prior fiscal year end. This
compared favorably to the anticipated decrease of $3,010,230 as per the final budget. The variance from
the final budget was primarily the result of spending under appropriation limits for the functions of
culture and recreation and employee benefits.

The Town’s General—Town Qutside Village Fund ending fund balance was $7,481,318. Approximately
43 4 percent, $3,248,984 of this amount is find balance assigned to specific use. The total fund balance
increased by $421,831 during 2014 as compared to a decrease of $2,048,107 as per the final budget. The
variance from the final budget was primarily the result of spending under appropriation limits for the
functions of public safety and employee benefits.

The Town’s Highway—Town Outside Village Fund ending fund balance was $1,784,804.
Approximately 49.2 percent, $877,590 of this amount is find balance assigned to specific use. The fund
balance increased by $208,193 during 2014 compared to a decrease of $538,584 as per the final budget.
The variance from the final budget was primarily the result of spending under appropriation limits for the
function of transportation and employee benefits.

The Town’s Special Grants Fund ending fund balance was $1,261,861, which is considered restricted.
The fund balance decreased by $268,799 during 2014. The appropriations of the Special Grants Fund are
approved based on grants received and vary from year to year.
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The Town’s Sewer District Fund ending fund balance was $7,489,215. Approximately 46.3 percent,
$3.469,034 of this amount is fimd balance assigned to specific use. The fund balance decreased by
$903,531 during 2014 compared 10 a decrease of $2,597,829 as per the final budget. The variance from
the final budget was primarily the result of spending under appropriation limits for the function of home
and community expenditures and employee benefits.

The Town’s Water District Fund ending fund balance was $7,589.750. Approximately 52.5 percent,
$3.987,617 of this amount is fimd balance assigned 1o specific use. The fund balance increased by
618,686 during 2014 compared to a decrease of $454,762 as per the final budget. The variance from the
final budget was primarily the result of spending under appropriation limits for the function of home and
community expenditures and emplovee benefits.

The Town’s Capital Project Fund reported an ending fund deficit of $16,301,570. This deficit increased
by $3,173,193 during 2014 as a result of capital projects expenditures. However, it’s expected the deficit
will be remedied through future bond issuances which are authorized.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Town’s General Fund budget generally contains budget amendments during the year. The budget is
allowed to be amended upward, increased, for prior year’s encumbrances since the funds were allocated
under the previous year’s budget, and the Town has appropriately assigned an equal amount of fund
balance at year-end for this purpose. Furthermore, the budget is allowed to be amended upward,
increased, for additional current year appropriations supported by an increase in budgeted revenues. A
budgetary comparison schedule within the required supplementary information section of this report has
been provided to demonstrate compliance with their budget. A summaryv of the General Fund resuits of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 is presented below in Table 6.

Table 6~—Summary of General Fund Results of Operations

Budgeted Amounts Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budget
Revnues and other financing sources S 26,787,251 § 26,898,654 $26.977.251 § 78,597
Expenditures and other financing uses 29,660,172 29.908.884 26,983,058 2,925,826

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and
other financing sources over
expenditures and other financing uses S (2,872,921) §  (3,010,230) § (5.807) § 3,004,423

Original budget compared to final budget—During the year, there was a $137,309 net increase
between the original and final amended budget within the General Fund. This increase was largely due to
an increase in supplemental appropriations for general government support and culture and recreation
expenditures.

General Fund total expenditures and transfers out were $2,925.826 less than corresponding final budgeted
appropriations. Following are the main components of the variance:

*  General government support expenditures were $527,546 less than budgeted due to conservative
spending.
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e Culture and recreation expenditures were $1,103,773 less than budgeted due to less than
anticipated spending.

o Employee benefits expenditures were $743,935 less than final budget largely due to fewer actual
retirement buyouts, less retiree medical insurance and social security expenditures than
previously forecasted.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets—The Town’s investment in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for its
governmental activities as of December 31, 2014, amounted to $144,185,318. This investment in capital
assets includes land and land improvements, construction in progress, infrastructure, buildings and
improvements, vehicles and equipment.

All depreciable capital assets were depreciated from acquisition date to the end of the current year as
outlined in the Town’s capital asset policy.

Capital assets net of depreciation for the governmental activities at the years ended December 31, 2014
and 2013 are presented below:

Table 7—Summary of Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)

December 31,
2014 2013

Govemnmental activities:

Land $ 1,493,633 § 1,493,633

Construction in progress 21,444,155 21,251,877

Building improvements 17,581,920 18,664,339

Transportation network 3,975,645 4,399,532

Sewer network 65,930,205 59,012,306

‘Water network 16,133,301 13,253,796

Drainage network 7,233,584 7,487,767

Improvements other than buildings 2,169,552 2,401,887

Machinery and equipment 8,223,323 8,390,946
Total governmental activities $ 144,185,318 §$ 136,356,083

The Town’s infrastructure assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town has elected to depreciate their infrastructure assets.
Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 of this report.

Long-term debt—At December 31, 2014, the Town’s governmental activities had bonded debt
outstanding of $37,251,356 as compared to $39,287,722 in the prior year. New York State statutes limit
the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue up to 7% of its five year valuation.
The Town’s outstanding general obligation debt as of December 31, 2014 is significantly lower than
current debt limitations for the Town.
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A summary of the Town’s long-term liabilities at December 31, 2014 and 2013 is presented within Table
8 as follows:

Table 8 —Summary of Long-Term Liabilities

December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
2014 2013 Doliar Percent (®0)

Serial Bonds 5 37251356 $ 39,287,722 S (2,036,366) 3.2)
EFC notes pavable 6,819,553 - 6,819,553 na
Due to employees' retircment system 136,575 200,258 {63.683) (31.8)
Landfill closure

and post closure Hability 5,472,230 3,553,050 § {80,820) (1.5)
Compensated absences 396,278 389,158 7,120 1.8
Other postemployment benefits 78,742,625 65,384,752 13,357,873 204
Capital leases 1,999,895 2,121,583 (121,690) 3.7

Total long-term liabilities $ 130.818,512 § 112,936,525 §18.003,677 15.9

The Town's most recent bond rating from Moody’s Investor Service is Aa2. Additional information on
the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 11 of this Teport.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

The unemployment rate, not seasonally adjusted, for the Buffalo-Niagara region during December 2014
was 5.7 percent. This is comparable to New York State’s unemployment rate of 5.8 and the national
unemployment rate of 5.7 percent.

The Town considered current year operational expenses and estimated increases based on economic
factors when establishing the 2015 budget. The Town’s 2015 budget includes the appropriation of
$1,900,000 of fund balance in the General Fund. Additional information on the Town’s budgeted
appropriations of fund balance can be found in Note 12 to the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, creditors and investors with a general
overview of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to the Supervisor’s Office, Town of Tonawanda, 2919 Delaware
Avenue, Kenmore, NY 14217,
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables
Intergovernmental receivables
Internal balances
Inventories
Prepaid items
Rehabilitation loans receivable
Total current assets
Noncurrent asseis:
Capital assets not being depreciated
Capiral assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Intergovernmental payables
Bond anticipation notes payable
Unearned revenues
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities;
Due within one vear
Due within more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Loans receivable
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Equipment and capital improvements
Repairs
Leachate
Public safety
Retirement
Special grants
Unrestricted
Total net position

- 14

Primary
Government

Governmental

Activities

$

25,204,839
12,708,577
6,929,396
5,687,321
613.794
972,054
2,461,226
7.942,046

62,519,253

22,937,788
121,247,530

144,185,318

206,704,571

2,063,962
4,949,063
573,851
21,400,000
456,920

29,443,796

2,003,110
128,813,402

130,818,512

160,262,308

7,942,046

81,239,107

3,119,253
2,413,472
97,505
716,480
1,837,274
1,261,861
(52,184,735)

S

38,500.217

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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TOwWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet—Governmental Funds
to the Government-wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (page 14) are different because:

Total fund balances—governmental funds (page 16) $ 19,787,137

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds. The cost of the assets is $312,520,735 and the accumulated

depreciation is $168,335,417. 144,185,318
Inventories used in governmental activities are not an available financial resource and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. 338,419

Intergovernmental receivables used in governmental activities are not an available
financial resource and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 557,390

To recognize interest accrual on long term debt, which, for fund reporting purposes, is not
recognized as a liability until due. (199,878)

Long-term liabilities, including serjal bonds, compensated absences, capital leases, EFC
notes payable, employees' retirement system liability, landfill closure and post closure
liability, and other postemployment benefits ("OPEB") are not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore are not reported in the funds. The effect of these items are:

Serial bonds (37,251,356)

EFC notes payable (6,819,553)

Employees' retirement system (136,575)

Landfill closure and post closure (5,472,230)

Compensated absences (396,278)

Other postemployment benefits (78,742,625)

Capital leases (1,999,895) (130,818,512)
Unvailable special assessment and notes receivables are reported as deferred inflows of
resources in the governmental funds, as they are not current financial resources. 1,725,650

Internal Service Fund assets and liabilities are included in governmental activities and
related charges for services provided. 2,924,693

Total net position—governmental activities $ 38,500,217

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

-~ 17



lx—.l

JuRupEYS SI Fo rd [REam ue am sjueTIajeR)s [BIGTROY dT 0 $010U o1 |,

LETI8L61  § 66IbC0t S (OLSTOE91) § OSLGRSL § SITOSVL $§ 198191 § JOSWRLT § SICIsFL § 0Ovieri 3 Rurpos—(jropap) sootrejeq pu,g
LBT6LETT 6e9CITy  (LLESTIED) ¥90°126'9 OPLTGER  0990ESL 119945 T 18F6s0°L I9TEL Buuupdag—(ronap) seoukpeg pun,g
(oso'zeI'E) (0er'e8) (g61°cL1'E) 989319 (155%c0s) (66L'99T) £61'80Z7 1€8°12Y (L08's) (oyap) vamrerey pury up aRUE 1N
£55'616'c  (S96LLYY ohr 006 (S8E%655)  (98TLOTD) -G GILov8) (ewsstD (sasm) sanmos Snjoreyy Xapo (e10,,
RETTiS s ALY - = = = N SUONEEL Qe uus-Fuo] Jo spanaoly
(z£6'698°) (so'eey) (615°c¥5) (6o6'L1L) (setiore't) - (zIx'18L) (61L91%) (R8Y°L5P°1) 100 SIYSURI],
TE6°696°T SROST SIFLEST PLSRST 6Tt . 666t 099°107, 1} $I9)SURL],
(SHSM) SAYAN0S HNEINVNLT HAHLO
(£09°T1T°L) SEC'RRE (ZPLLTTY)  TLORLIT  $59'€9z (66L7997) 000986  0SSRITT  1Z00ST] sammyipiadya wao
SATIDAST O (ADTISIAYSP) $530%4)
6IRELETOT GEYZO0DT PILOVEFL 8ZSSTUR  IROWPVLI  SOCSO%L | GPLBSSL CTUROVIZ  0LS'STSST saamprixdxa g,
ST OVET 22, o] == R — e e T e = Arpuo Teide;y
6b0‘L86 O9FEh . ZL8°S11 10$°2L9 - 906°9T C1L°E 8RP1Z1 1oy
950861 000°sL . 000°08T 66261 [T - 000061 SLO'S T89°RYS (edmun,y
2DIARS WA
LU LYLET YIs'e8TT - 0rL°GER ) SLEVS'T TLI'6LI PFEILIE BSE'60F'L SOP'CLLY syaaq aaLo7dus]
068°26[°CT 16T PLE'S - 915HL1'9 £58°6L0Y ££0°689°T K70°601 692958 S20LAION AJTINUINIGD PIE SO
¢TI - . - - . - A rar AN TONEALNDL PIE S0,y
R00°0Z 1 - = . = - - - SO0°0T1T Aymmsoddo pue souysTSEE DEONO0;(
OLLTEY'L 9LY 8PS : % - - 660°0LI'S s S6T°E16 nonepodsael ],
90K V1T - : - 50876 Lh's0z'1 preay
CLT SOV VT LRE'LYL 2 - - - YIO'aTYTT ZLI 1017 Ajages angn,g
HESPRA’S - : - - - E 0L8°28Tl HHO° LD noddns jusmioaod [roual)
JuoLI)
ANLLIONAIXA
OLCTOTYG pLIT6E0L  TRUOIT  G6SEOVo  OFTBOLTIL  YOVeGS'T  SSERVE®  COOIVZE | 16SSLLOC SONURAN [RIO ],
0ESTEF L - N _ - LERDEET - €918 - PIE [R19pa]
056 YPE'T - gECT = . - 16 1L TOP' 199 010571 pre g
SEOROL Y _ = . - 000881 9L%°00¢ 65LC08" SNUAADL PUILIDI]
£ET'681 - 950°0TT 0L - - LES'Y 6108 STIOATR|[OOS [y
OTO"810°1 0vz's . SLELT 0£6°8E ¥3p°88 610°%6 9696 sso] 1oy nonesuoduns pur fuadoxd yo spey
108°6L8°1 - - - - = - 10R°ELE ] KOINALI0} PUY $00T,]
088069 - - - - . 09y L¥6 598 ELF VL] spuuad pue sasusory
095°195 POV : £61°L6 19471 o6t SO1°E 669'891 96 VLT Apadoud pme Asuot go aspy
10LRISY 16V 140 FOLLL 16Z'866°1 - Z8T9T1 PSE66T 6l6'1s SOTIRID [RTOUNLIAGT YT
BISLOTCT 0RO - LOSLYZ'G 65€°161°8 CLIRIT - L206ST TRLYRTY Atk TRl ]
PRECOS'S = - - - . 000°00L PRESHRL - swmape vy Apndoxdnon
TF1906°T - - - . - SIFOLS L01°180°T OVSTl st xe Apadord omo
059866'Ey  § 065 IEE0T § - § - $ 6R6U9YT § 0 - $ BOUSPI ¢ RTEWPREIT S SEOOLYET § saxe; Apadoad oy
SANNIAKNA
spung Spung §199 _.c.-— JILSICL LS SJOEdL) mmﬂ:._ A wms—m A —n.—eﬂuc
[EJUITUALIDAOL) JofemuoN endey JIJBAA AIMIY 1¥Radg IPIIN() UMG], IPININ() LMO |,
%301, e, Aesmgigy (FEENS
MIIAFY ey

FIOZ “1€ 10quuddd(q papuy JBax
Spun j [FIUdMIIACL)—{(2G(]) sadurfey puny W safuey;) pus samNpuadyy ‘Sonuasdy Jo juoandje)s

MHOA MUN ‘VANVAMVYNO ], HO NAAO,



TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances (Deficit)—Governmental Funds to the Government-wide Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 15) are different because:
Net change in fund balances {(deficit}—total governmental funds (page 18) $ (3,192,050)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

Capital asset additions $ 14,857,635

Depreciation expense (7,028,400) 7,829,235
The net effect of miscellaneous transactions involving inventory. (145,775)
The net effect of landfill closure and post-closure activity in the current year. 80,820

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (26,038)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, interest is recognized as an expenditure in the
governmental funds when it is due. In the statement of activities, interest expense is
recognized as it accrues, regardless of when it is due. The net effect of these
differences in the treatment of general obligation bonds, installment purchase debt
and related items is as follows:

Principal payments on serial bonds $ 2,036,366

Proceeds from EFC note payable (6,819,553)

Employees' retirement system liability 63,683

Change in accrued expenditures 21,736

Principal payments on capital lease 121,690 (4,576,078)

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses—compensated absences
(vacation & compensatory time) and other post-employment benefits ("OPEB"), and
workers compensation——are measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the
governmental funds, however, expenditures for these items are measured by the
amount of financial resources used (essentially, the amounts actually paid). The net
effect of thege differences is as follows:

Compensated absences $ (7,120)
Other postemployment benefits (13,357,873) (13,364,993)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cost of insurance,
judgements, claims and related administrative expenses to individual funds. The net

excess of charges for such services is reported within governmental activities. (485,132)
Change in net position of govemmental activities $ (13,880,011)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Position—Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2014

Governmental Activities—
Internal Service Funds

Self Workers Total
Insurance Compensation Internal
Fund Fund Service Funds
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ] 1,332,286 § 3,391,955 8 4,724,241
Accounts receivable 2911 - 2.911
Prepaid items 378,008 280,542 638,550
Total current assets 1,713,205 3,672,497 5,385,702
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 12,504 128,821 141,323
Accrued liabilities 800,000 1,519,684 2,319,684
Total current liabilities 812,504 1.648.503 2,461,009
NET POSITION
Restricted for judgments and claims 900,701 2,023,992 2,924,693
Total net position g 900,701 $ 2,023,992 § 2,924,693

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position—Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Governmental Activities—

Internal Service Funds
Self ‘Workers Total
Insurance Compensation Internal
Fund Fund Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 800,000 §$ 2,100,000 $ 2,900,000
Operating expenses:
Administrative expenses 70,657 - 70,657
Judgments and claim expenses 683,387 2,241,017 2,924,404
Excess insurance 410,223 - 410,223
Total operating expenses 1,164,267 2,241,017 3,405,284
Operating loss (364,267) (141,017) (505,284)
Nonoperating revenues:
Refund of prior year expenditures - 16,600 16,600
Interest income 974 2,578 3,552
Total nonoperating revenues 974 19,178 20,152
Change in net position (363,293) (121,839) (485,132)
Total net position—beginning 1,263,994 2,145,831 3,409,825
Total net position—ending $ 900,701 $ 2023992 § 2,924,693

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

221 -



TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Statement of Cash Flows—Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Governmental
Activities
Internal
Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from participating funds S 2,897.089
Payments to employees and suppliers (555.942)
Payments for administrative and
judgments and claims (2,449.930)
Net cash used for operating activites (108,783)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Miscellanous 16,600
Interest earnings 3,552
Net cash provided by investing activities 20,152
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (88.631)
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning 4,812,872
Cash and cash equivalents—ending S 4,724,241
Reconciliaton of operating loss to net cash
used for operating activities:
Operating loss 5 (505,284)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash used for operating activities:
Increase in accounts receivable (2.911)
Increase in prepaid items (69,777)
Decrease in accounts payable (75.942)
Increase in accrued liabilities 545,131
Net cash provided by operating activities $ (108.783)

The notes 10 the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Statement of Net Position—Agency Fund

December 31, 2014
ASSETS
Cash $§ 712,081
LIABILITIES
Agency liabilities $ 98,287
Due to other funds 613,794
Total liabilities $ 712,081

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended December 31, 2014

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Town of Tonawanda, New York (the “Town™) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the Town’s accounting policies are described below.

Description of Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. All fiduciary activities
are reported only in the fund financial statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to
external customers for support. The Town reports no business-type activities. Likewise, the primary
government is reported separately from the legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

Reporting Entity
The Town is a unit of local government created by the State of New York. The Town operates under
provisions of New York State law and various local laws. The five-member Town Board is the

legislative body responsible for overall operations. The Supervisor serves as Chief Executive Officer.

Independently elected officials of the Town include:

Supervisor Town Clerk
Councilmembers (4) Superintendent of Highways
Town Justices (2)

Units of local government which operate within the boundaries of the Town are the County of Eric
and the Village of Kenmore. The following basic services are provided: police, highway, sanitation,
recreation, sewer service, drainage, street lighting, water service, fire protection through contracts
with local volunteer companies and general administration.

Basis of Presentation—Government-wide Financial Statements

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
The governmental activities column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service
funds. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and the fiduciary fund, even
though the latter is excluded from the government-wide financial statements.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide

financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes where the amounts
are reasonably equivalent in value to the interfund services provided and other charges between the
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government’s water and sewer and various other functions of the Town, Elimination of these charges
would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Basis of Presentation—Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the Town’s funds, including its fiduciary
fund. Separate statements for each fund category—governmental and fiduciary—are presented. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate
column. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

®  General Fund—The General Fund constitutes the primary operating fund of the Town and
includes all operations not required to be recorded in other funds, The principal source of
revenue for the General Fund is real property taxes.

* General—Town Outside Village Fund—Located wholly within the Town is the Village of
Kenmore, which is an independent governmental entity. The General—Town Outside Village
Fund accounts for selected services which cannot be charged to taxable properties located in
the Village by various New York State statutes.

* Highway—Town Outside Village Fund—The Highway Fund is used to record all revenues
and expenditures related to road maintenance and construction throughout the Town.

* Special Grants Fund—The Special Grants Fund is used to record all activity related 1o the
Federal Housing and Urban Development Community Development program.

* Sewer District Fund—The Sewer Fund is used to record all revenues and expenditures related
to operation and maintenance of the sewer district.

® Waiter District Fund—The Water District Fund is used to record all revenues and
expenditures related to operation and maintenance of the water disirict.

* Capital Projects Fund—The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources
to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

* Internal Service Funds—The Internal Service Funds are used to account for the Town’s
insurance program. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the Town’s various functions.

* Agency Fund—The Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the Town as an agent
for individuals, other governments, or other finds. The agency fund is custodial in nature and
does not involve measurement of results of operations. The agency fund accounts, such as
payroll withholdings, are reported as liabilities.

During the course of operations the Town has activity between funds for various purposes. Any
residual balances outstanding ar year-end are reported as due from/to other funds and advances
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to/from other funds. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, cerfain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances
between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is
included as internal balances in the governmental activities column.

Further, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources between funds. In
fund financial statements these amounts are reported at gross amounts as transfers in/out. While
reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements. Transfers between the funds included in governmental
activities are eliminated so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental
activities column.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus
and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as
current financial resources ot economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of
transactions or events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of
the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred,
as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to
compensated absences, and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term
debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Entitlements are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met,
including any time requirements, and the amount is received during the period of availability.
Expenditure driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been
incurred and all other eligibility requirements are met and the amount is received during the period of
availability. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the Town.

The internal service funds are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting. The agency fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis
of accounting for reporting its assets and liabilities
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Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments—The Town's cash, cash equivalents and investments
consist of cash on hand, demand deposits, time deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The Town had no
investments at December 31, 2014; however, when the Town does have investments they are
recorded at fair value based on quoted market value.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents—Restricted cash and cash equivalents represent amounts to
support fund balance restrictions.

Inyentory—The Town accounts for inventory under the purchase method, whereby inventory
purchases are recognized as expenditures regardless of the period used. All inventories are valued at
cost using the first in / first out (FIFOQ) method. The Town considers inventory of the Water District
Fund to be significant at year end. Accordingly, the Town has presented such inventory on the
balance sheet at December 31, 2014. As a result, the Town has adjusted the prior year inventory
balance to reflect actual amounts on hand at year end. This adjustment is presented as a direct
adjustment of the beginning fund balance of the Water District Fund. As such, the Town’s beginning
fund balance of the Water District Fund at January 1, 2014 of $7.071.616 has been adjusted to
$6,971,064 1o reflect the change in inventory.

Prepaid Items—Certain retirement payments reflect costs applicable to future accouniing periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both the government-wide and fund financial statements. The cost of
prepaid items is recorded as expenses/expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Capital Assets—Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, roads and infrastructure
assets, are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the
Town as assets with an initial, individual cost equal to or greater than $5,000 and an estimated useful
life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. The
reported value excludes normal maintenance and repairs, which are essentially amounts spent in
relation 1o capital assets that do not increase the capacity or efficiency of the item or increase its
estimated useful life. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value of the item at
the date of its donation.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are incurred.
Expenditures reported in the Capital Project Fund are classified as capital outlays. Routine capital
expenditures in other funds are included in the appropriate functional category (i.e. purchase of new
highway equipment as part of current expenditures—transportation). Additionatly, the amount
reported as capital outlays in the Capital Projects Fund includes certain non-capitalized cosis (i.e.
furnishings below the capitalization threshold). Capital outlay as reported in the Capital Project Fund
is classified in the foliowing functional categories:

Functional Category

General Government Support § 144399
Public Safety 25,119
Health 31.296
Transportation 1,743,711
Culture and Recreation 11,637
Home and Community Services 12,380,562

Total 14,340,724
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Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other capital assets of the Town are
depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated usefuf lives:

Assets Years
Buildings and building improvements 20-50
Transportation network 20
Sewer network 20-50
Water network 20-50
Drainage network 75
Improvements other than buildings 20
Machinery and ¢quipment 5-15

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources—In addition to assets, the statement of financial position
will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will rot be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. At December 31, 2014, the Town does not have any items that qualify for
reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. At December 31, 2014, the Town has
three types of items which qualify for reporting in this category.

The first item reports deferred inflows related to loans receivable on both the governmental funds
balance sheet and the statement of net position. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The second and third items, note
receivable and special assessments, arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, deferred inflows of resources for the note receivable and special assessments are only
reported on the governmental funds balance sheet.

Net Position Flow Assumption—Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose
from both restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to
calculate the amounts to report as restricted—net position and unrestricted—net position in the
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about
the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to consider
restricted—net position to have been depleted before unrestricted—net position is applied.

Fund Balance Flow Assumptions—Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose
from both restricted and unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund
balance). In order to calculate the amounts to report as resfricted, committed, assigned, and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the Town’s policy to
consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted before using any of the components of
unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for
the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance.
Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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Fund Balance Policies—Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based
on the nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The Town itself
can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a commitment (committed fund
balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance).

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes determined by a formal action of the Town’s highest level of decision-making authority.
The Town Board is the highest level of decision-making authority for the government that can, by
Town Board resolution prior to the end of the fiscal vear, commit fund balance. Once adopted, the
limitation imposed by the resolution remains in place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of
another resolution) to remove or revise the limitation.

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the government for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as commitied. The Town Board has
authorized the Supervisor to assign fund balance. The Town Board may also assign fund balance as it
does when appropriating fund balance to cover a gap between estimated revenue and appropriations
in the subsequent year’s appropriated budget. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist
termporarily. In other words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal
of an assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either remove or
revise a commitment,

Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

Program Revenues—Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a
given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions (including special assessments) that are
restricted to meeting those operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. All
taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes, and other internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues rather than program revenues.

Proprietary Funds Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses—Proprietary funds
distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprictary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
internal service funds include interfund revenues. Operating expenses for the internal service funds
include administrative costs and expenses associated with judgments and claims. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Property Taxes—The Erie County Legislature prepares the levy in late December of each year and
jointly bills the Town levy and Erie County real property taxes. Property taxes are levied and become
a lien as of January 1 based on assessed property values as of that date.

Tax payments are due January 1 to February 15 without penalty; February 16 to 28 a 1.5% penaity;
March 1 to 15 a 3% penalty; March 16 to 31 a 4.5% penalty; April 1 t0 17 a 6% penalty; April 18 to
May 1 a 7.5% penalty; and 1.5% added each month thereafter.

The tax roll is returned to the Erie County Commissioner of Finance after June 30 at which time all
unpaid taxes and penaliies are payable to that office. The Town retains their full tax levies and all
unpaid items are returned to the County. Thus, the Town is assured of receiving 100% of its tax levy.
The County enforces all liens.
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The Town also bills and collects taxes for various school districts within Town limits. Collections of
the school district taxes and remittances of them are accounted for by the Town Clerk, independent of
Town operations.

Unearned Revenue—Certain revenues have not met the revenue recognition criteria for government-
wide or fund financial purposes. At December 31, 2014, the Town reported unearned revenues within
the General Fund, General—Town Outside Village Fund, and Special Grant Fund. The Town has
received grant, rent, and gift card funds in advance but has not performed the services, and therefore
recognizes a liability.

Compensated Absences—Most Town employees are granted vacation and sick leave and earn
compensatory absences in varying amounts. Vacations and compensatory absences not taken may be
carried over at the end of the fiscal year in which they are eammed. Employees are not entitled to
receive payment for unused sick leave in the event of termination or upon retirement. Vacations and
compensatory absences carried over at the end of the fiscal year accumulated by governmental fund
type employees is recorded as long-term liability as expendable available financial resources will not
be used to liquidate these amounts. Instead, such amounts will be paid from subsequent years
appropriations for personal services.

Payment of compensated absences recorded in the government-wide financial statements is dependent
on many factors; therefore, the timing of future payments in not readily determinable. However,
management believes that sufficient resources will be available for the payment of compensated
absences when such payments become due.

Pensions—Nearly all Town employees are members of various New York State retirement systems.
The Town is invoiced annually by the systems for its share of the cost.

Other Postemployment Benefits—In addition to providing pension benefits, the Town provides
health insurance coverage and survivor benefits for retired employees and their survivors as discussed

in Note 7.

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (“COBRA™), the Town provides
healthcare benefits to eligible former employees and eligible dependents. Certain requirements are
outlined by the federal government for this coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured on or
before the tenth (10™) day of the month for the actual month covered. This program is offered for a
duration of 18 months after the termination date. There is no associated cost to the Town under this
program, and there were 2 participants in the program as of December 31, 2014.

Other

Estimates—The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements—During the year ended December 31, 2014, the
Town implemented GASB Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations, and No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. The objective of GASB Statement No. 67 is to improve financial reporting by
state and local govermmental pension plans. This Staternent replaces GASB Statement No. 25 and
Statement No. 50. The objective of GASB Statement No. 69 is to establish accounting and financial
reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. The
objective of GASB Statement No. 70 is to improve financial reporting by state and local governments
that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees. GASB Statements Nos. 67, 69, and 70 did
not have a material impact on the Town’s financial position or results from operations.

Future Impacts of Accounting Pronouncements—The Town has not completed the process of
evaluating the impact that will result from adopting GASB Statements No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent 10 the Measurement Date—and amendment of GASB
Statement No. 68, effective for the year ending December 31, 2015, No. 72, Fair Value Measurement
and Application, effective for the year ending December 31, 2016, No. 73, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets that Ave Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and
Amendments 1o Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, effective for the year ending
December 31, 2016, No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than
Pension Plans, effective for the year ending December 31, 2017, and No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, effective for
the vear ending December 31, 2018. The Town is, therefore, unable to disclose the impact that
adopting GASB Statements No. 68, 71, 72, 73, 74 and 75 will have on its financial position and
results of operations when such statements are adopted.

Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

Legal Compliance—Budgets—The Town follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data
reflected in the financial statements:

*  Prior to September 30, the Town Supervisor files a “tentative” budget with the Town Clerk for
the following fiscal vear to commence on January 1. This budget, which includes appropriations
and estimated revenues, is then presented to the full Town Board by October 5th.

¢ The full Town Board reviews the tentative budget and may adjust same before approving a
“preliminary” budget and calling for a public hearing, which is generally held in November.

* Following the public hearing, revisions may again be made by the Town Board before filing an
adopted budget with Eric County by November 20th.

* Formal annual budgetary accounts are employed as a management control device for the General
and all Special Revenue Funds, except the Special Grants and Capital Projects Funds.

® During the fiscal year, the Town Board can legally amend the operating budgets and is
empowered to implement supplemental appropriations. Budget amendments are required for the
departmental budgetary control. All budget amendments and budget transfers require Town
Board approval.
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year. On January 1®, encumbrance assignments outstanding at year-end are reappropriated to the
ensuing year’s original budget.

e The Special Grants Fund and the Capital Projects Fund appropriations are not included in the
Town’s annual budget. Instead appropriations are approved through a Town Board resolution at
the grant/project’s inception and lapse upon completion/termination of the grant/project.

« Total expenditures for each object classification within a department may not legally exceed the
total appropriations for that object classification.

Deficit Fund Balance—At December 31, 2014, the Capital Projects Fund, a major fund, has a deficit
fund balance of $16,301,570. The primary reason for the deficit in this case is that the Town issued
bond anticipation notes (“BANs”), which do not qualify for treatment as a long-term liability.
Accordingly, the BANs are reported as a fund liability in the Capital Projects Fund balance sheet
(rather than an inflow on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances).
When the cash from the BANS is spent, expenditures are reported and fund balance is reduced. Since
the BANSs are the main source of resources for the fund, the result is an overall fund deficit. This
deficit will be eliminated as resources are obtained (e.g., from revenues, long-term debt issuances,
and transfers in) to make the scheduled debt service principal and interest payments on the BANSs or
retire the BANSs.

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town’s investment policies are governed by State statutes. In addition, the Town has its own
written investment policy. Town monies must be deposited in FDIC-insured commercial banks or
trust companies located within New York State. The Supervisor is authorized to use demand accounts
and certificates of deposit. Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
Agencies, repurchase agreements, and obligations of New York State or its localities.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit at
100% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The Town has entered into custodial
agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These agreements authorize the
obligation that may be pledged as collateral. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are
outlined in Chapter 623 of the laws of the State of New York.

Cash and restricted cash at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Governmental  Proprietary  Fiduciary

Funds Funds Fund Total
Petty cash (uncollateralized) $ 8,040 § - $ - $ 8,040
Deposits 33,181,135 4,724,241 712,081 38,617,457

Total $ 33,189,175 $ 4,724,241 $ 712,081 § 38,625497

=532 -



Deposits—All deposits are carried at fair value and are classified by custodial credit risk at December
31, 2014 as follows:

Bank Canrying
Balance Amount
FDIC Insured $ 1,750,160 $ 1,750,160
Uninsured:
Collateral held by pledging bank's
agent in the Town's name 37.715,104 36,867,297
Total $ 39,465,264 $ 38617457

Custodial Credit Risk—Deposits—Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the Town’s deposits may not be returned to it. As noted above, by New York State statute all deposits
in excess of FDIC insurance coverage must be collateralized. At December 31, 2014 the Town's
deposits were either FDIC insured or collateralized with securities held by the pledging bank’s agent
in the Town’s name.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Town reports restricted cash, totaling $12,708,577.
These funds are set aside for future payments toward insurance, approved capital project spending
and debt service payments, in the amounts of $1,943,309, $1,764,749, $510.264, $1,132,568.
$2,460,242, $4,524,593, and $372,852.

Investments—Investments are carried at fair value, as determined by quoted market prices. At
December 31, 2014, the Town had no investments.

Interest Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of deposits and investments. The Town’s investment policy minimizes the risk by
structuring the investment portfolio so that the deposits and investments mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell deposits and investments on
the open market prior to maturity.

-33-



3. RECEIVABLES
Major revenues accrued by the Town at December 31, 2014:

Accounts Receivable—Represents amounts due from various sources. Also included are special
assessment receivables from individual property owners. These amounts have been reported as
deferred inflows of resources in the balance sheet of the govemmental funds and are recognized as
revenue when the amounts are both measurable and available. The Town’s accounts receivable at
December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Governmental Funds:
General Fund:
Various fees and charges $ 279,098
Notes receivable 114,791 ¢ 393,889
General—Town Qutside Village Fund:
Various fees and charges 599,583
Highway—Town Outside Village Fund:
Special assessments 820,000
Various fees and charges 60,356 880,356
Special Grants Fund:
Various fees and charges 14,814
Sewer Fund:
Sewer rents 1,960,632
Various fees and charges 295,277
Special assessements 30,000 2,285,909
Water Fund:
Water rents 2,627,206
Various fees and charges 51,423 2,678,629
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
Garbage and Refuse District Fund 68,235
Drainage District Fund 5,070 73,305
Total governmental funds $ 6,926,485
Proprietary Fund $ 2,911
Agency Fund $ 121,600
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Intergovernmental Receivables—Represents amounts due from other units of government, such as
Federal, New York State, County of Erie or other local governments. Amounts due the Town at
December 31, 2014 are presented as follows:

Governmental Funds:
General Fund:

Due from New York State S 93230

Due from Erie County 3,300

Due from local sources 32,561 129,091
General—Town Ouside Village Fund:

Due from Federal 5,387

Due from New York State 38,500

Due from Erie County 2.623.571

Due from local sources 21,773 2,689,231
Highway—Town Outside Village Fund:

Due from New York State 62,029

Due from Erie County 282,436 344,515
Special Grants Fund:

Due from Federal 195,546

Due from local sources 47 195,593
Sewer District Fund:

Due from New York State 17,802

Due from local sources 743,190 760,992
Water District Fund:

Due from local sources 2,304
Capiral Projects Fund:

Due from Erie County 1,008,203

Total governmental funds: $ 5,129,931

Rehabilitation Loans Receivable—Rchabilitation loans receivable at December 31, 2014 consist of
individual home improvement revolving loans with various interest and repayment terms, secured by
second mortgages on the individual properties. These receivables are offset by deferred inflows of
resources since the revenue recognition criteria has not been met. The balance at December 31, 2014
is $7,942,046.



4. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2014 was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Transportation network
Sewer network
‘Water network
Drainage network
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Transportation network
Sewer network
Water network
Drainage network
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 12/31/2014
1,493,633 § - - 1,493,633
21,251,877 13,637,953 (13,445,675) 21,444,155
22,745,510 13,637,953 (13,445,675) 22,937,788
37,625,467 - 37,625,467
23,058,005 - 23,058,005
122,951,291 9,640,450 - 132,591,741
40,893,687 3,522,581 - 44,416,268
19,713,737 - 19,713,737
7,139,932 - - 7,139,932
23,636,595 1,502,326 (101,124) 25,037,797
275,018,714 14,665,357 {101,124y  $289,582,947
(18,961,128) (1,082,419) - (20,043,547)
(18,658,473) (423,887) (19,082,360)
(63,938,985) (2,722,551) - (66,661,536)
(27,639,891) (643,076) - (28,282,967)
(12,225,970) (254,183) (12,480,153)
(4,738,045) (232,335) - (4,970,380)
(15,245,649) (1,669,949) 101,124 (16,814,474)
(161,408,141) (7,028,400) 101,124 (168,335,417)
113,610,573 7,636,957 - 121,247,530

$ 136,356,083 $ 21,274910 § (13,445,675) $ 144,185318

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the governmental activities for the year ended

December 31, 2014 as follows:

Governmental activities:
General government support

Public safety
Health
Transportation

Culture and recreation
Home and community services

Total depreciation expense—governmental activities
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320,303
366,799

34,409

921,701
1,056,428
4,328,760

—_—

7,028,400
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5. ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities reported by governmental funds of the Town as of December 31, 2014, were as

follows:
General Highway Special Sewer Water Other Total
General Town Outside Town Quiside  Grants Districi District  Governmetal Governmental
Fund Village Village Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

Salary and
employee benefits S 648477 § 789,373 § 217455 § 7445 §298756 $195433 § 272362 § 2429501

6. PENSION PLANS

Plan Description—The Town participates in the New York State and Local Emplovees’ Retirement
System (“ERS”), the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (“PFRS”) and the
Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan (the “Systems™). These are cost-sharing multiple-
employer retirement systems. The Systems provide retirement as well as death and disability
benefits. Obligations of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to emplovees are
governed by the New York State Retirement and Social Security Law (the “NYSRSSL™). As set
forth in the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller of the State of New York (the “Comptroller”) serves as sole
trustee and administrative head of the Systems. The Comptroller shall adopt and may amend rules
and regulations for the administration and wansaction of the business of the Systems and for the
custody and control of their funds. The Systems issue a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained
by writing to the New York State and Local Retirement Systems, 110 State Street, Albany, NY
12244,

Funding Policy—The Sysiems are noncontributory, except for employees who joined the New York
State and Local Employees” Retirement System after July 27, 1976 who contribute three percent (3%)
of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who joined on or after January 10,
2010 (ERS) who generally contribute three percent (3%) of their salary for their entire length of
service, Those joining after April 1, 2012 (Tier 6) are required to contribute a percentage ranging
from three percent (3%) to six percent (6%), based on salary. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL,
the Comptroller annually certifies the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the
employers’ contributions based on salaries paid during the New York State Local Retirement
Systems’ fiscal year ending March 31%,

The Town is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The required contributions for
the current year and two preceding years were as follows

Year Ended December 31, ERS PFRS
2014 S 4394165 $§ 2,696,301
2013 4,673,506 2,892,155
2012 4,068,494 2,290,729
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7. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description—In addition to providing pension benefits, the Town provides health insurance
coverage and/or payment for fractional values to eligible retired employees. Substantially all of the
Town’s full-time employees may become eligible for these benefits upon retirement. The Town is
obligated to pay such benefits as a result of union contracts and Town Board rules and regulation for
nonunion employees. Health care benefits are provided through insurance companies whose
premiums are based on the benefits paid during the year. The Town recognizes the cost of providing
benefits by recording its share of insurance premiums as an expenditure in the year paid. During the
year ended December 31, 2014, $5,858,763 was paid on behalf of approximately 384 retirees and was
recorded as an expenditure in the respective funds.

Funding Policy—Authorization for the Town to pay retiree health insurance premiums was enacted
through union contracts, which are approved by the Town Board. Except for participants hired on or
after April 1, 2004, salaried employees who retired prior to January 1, 1982 and police retirees hired
on or after December 14, 1993, retirees that meet the age and years of service requirements are not
required to contribute to postretirement healthcare benefits. Medical benefits are provided for the life
of the retiree and their spouse.

The Town’s annual postemployment benefit (“OPEB™) cost is calculated based on the annual required
contributions (“ARC”) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers Jor
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover the normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liability over a period not to exceed thirty years.

The table presented below shows the components of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the past two
years, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the Town’s net OPEB

obligation.
December 31,
2014 2013

Annual required contribution ("ARC") $ 20,786,652 § 18,568,155
Interest on net OPEB obligation 2,615,390 2,136,554
Adjustment to anmual required contribution (4,185,406) (3,341,964)

Annual OPEB costs (expense) 19,216,636 17,362,745
Contributions made (5,858,763) (5,391,833)

Increase in net OPEB obligation 13,357,873 11,970,912
Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year 65,384,752 53,413,840
Net OPEB obligation—end of year $ 78,742,625 § 65,384,752

Funding Status and Funding Progress—As of December 31, 2014, calculations were based on plan
data as of January 1, 2014 and financial data as of December 31, 2014. The accrued liability for
benefits was $211,978,256, all of which was unfunded. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active
employees covered by the plan) was $32,969,153, and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability to the covered payroll was 643.0%. The total postemployment health insurance cost was
$5,858,763 for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of evenis far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates
are made about the future.

The Town’s schedule of contributions for the most recent three years is shown below:

Year Annuaj
Ended OPEB Contributions Percentage
December 31, Cost Made Contributed
2014 $ 19.216,636 $ 5,858,763 30.5%
2013 17,362,745 5,391,833 31.1%
2012 16,951,082 4,634,236 27.3%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multivear trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for
benefits,

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions—Calculations are based on the types of benefits provided
under the terms of the substantive plan, the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members, at the time of the valuation and on the pattern of cost sharing between the employee and
plan members. The projection of benefits does not incorporate the potential effect of a change in the
pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the futyre. Calculations reflect a
long-term perspective, so methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to
reduce short-term volatility.

In the January 1, 2014 actuarial valuation update, the projected unit credit method was used. The
actuarial assumptions included a valuation and measurement date of January 1, 2013. The expected
investment rate of return on employer’s assets is 4.0 percent. The rate is based on the projected long-
term earning rate of the assets expected to be available to pay benefits. Since the Town does not
currently segregate funding for these benefits, the appropriate rate is the expected return on the
employer’s assets. The expected inflation rate is 2.25 percent. The RP-2014 Mortality Table projected
using Scale MP-2014, with no collar adjustment, is used for mortality rates. Rates of decrement due
to disability are assumed to be 0 percent. Rates of retirement and turnover are those used by the State
of New York for the retirement valuations of the Employees Retirement System (ERS) and the Police
and Fire Retirement System (PFRS). Rates of retirement are based on the experience under the New
York State Employees’ Retirement System (ERS) and the New York Police and Fire Retirement
System (PFRS). It was assumed that 100 percent of future retirees eligible for coverage will elect
postemployment heath care benefits and 75 percent of those retires will elect spousal coverage. The
expected per capital costs of claims was based upon the Traditional Blue POS 229 Plan and the
Traditional Blue PPO 811 Plan. The assumed rates of increase in health care vary from 3.89 percent
to 8.00 percent and the administrative fees are assumed to increase at 3.25 percent per year. The
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 25 years on a level dollar closed basis.
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8. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town assumes the liability for most risk including, but not limited to workers' compensation,
property damage, and personal injury liability. The insurance policies obtained at this time include:
excess liability; property, equipment and auto; crime; golf dome property and golf dome boiler and
machinery. For these insurance policies, no amount of settlements exceeded the insurance coverage
during the past three years. Risk Management—The Town carmries commercial excess liability
insurance of $10,000,000 per occurrence with a $10,000,000 aggregate annual limit for its
government operations. The Town’s property, equipment and auto policy is limited to $280,000,000
per occurrence. The Town is insured with commercial crime coverage limited to various amounts
dependent on the type of claim. The Town also holds golf dome property and golf dome boiler and
machinery policies with total limits of $2,166,320 and $3,877,229, respectively.

9. LEASE OBLIGATIONS

Capital Leases—The Town has entered into a lease agreement as a lessee to finance an energy
performance project. The lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and,
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the
inception date. The assets acquired through the capital lease are as follows:

Governmental
Activities
Assets:
Aquatic & Fitness Center improvements $ 2,555,953
Less: accumulated depreciation (511,190)
Total $ 2,044,763

Payments on the original lease commenced June 1, 2009 and are due every three months thereafter
(payment dates are March 1, June 1, September 1, and December 1). Payments are each $52,681 with
final payment due March 1, 2027. Nominal annual rate is 4.29 percent. The obligation under the lease
can be summarized as follows:

Governmental
Fiscal Year Ending December 31, Activities

2015 $ 210,725

2016 210,725

2017 210,725

2018 210,725

2019 210,725

2020-2024 1,053,624

2025-2028 474,131

Total minimum lease payments 2,581,380
Less: amount representing interest (581,485)

Present value of minimum lease payments $ 1,999,895
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10. SHORT-TERM DERT

Liabilities for bond anticipation notes (“BAN’s”) are generally accounted for in the capital projects
funds. Principal payments on BAN’s must be made annually. State law requires that BAN’s issued
for capital purposes, be converted to long-term obligations within five vears after the original issue
date. However, BAN’s issued for assessable improvement projecis may be renewed for a period
equivalent to the maximum life of the permanent financing, provided that stipulated annual reductions
of principal are made. The following is a summary of changes in the Town's short-term debt for the
year ended December 31, 2014:

Interest Maturity  Balance Balance
Desctiption Rate Daie 1/1/2014 Issues Redemptons 12312014
Recorded in Capital Projects Fund for:
General Fund:
Technology Upgrade 1.00% 9/4/2014 & 175,000 § - S 173,000 S -
Brightor: Arena Turf and Lincoln Poot Liner LO0% 9/4/2014 50,000 50,000 -
New Worlds and Kronos 1.00% 9/4/2014 350,000 - 350,000 -
Sheridan Parkside Spray Pool 1.00% 9/4/2014 150,000 - 150,000 -
Technology Upgrade 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 100.000 - 100,000
Brighton Arena Turf and Lincoln Pool Liner 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 25,000 - 25,000
New Worlds and Kronos 0.75% 9/3/2015 175,000 - 175,000
Sheridan Parkside Spray Pool 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 100,000 - 100,000
Townwide Telephone System 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 275,000 - 275,000
Highway—Town Outside of Village Fund:
North Youngman Commerce Center 1.00% 9/4,2014 200,000 - 200,000 -
Cold Milling Maching 1.00% 942014 350,000 - 330,000 -
North Youngman Commerce Center 0.75% 973/201= - 130.000 - 150,000
Cold Milling Maching 0.75% 93,2015 . 275,000 - 275,000
Sewer District Fund:
Inflow and Infiltration Demonstration Project 1.00% 942014 675,000 R 675,000 -
Creekside Station and Sanitarv Sewer Rehabilitation 1.00% 9472014 1,125,000 - 1,125,000
WWTF Sludge Management Improvement 1.00% 9/4/2014 3,500,000 . 3,500,000
L&I Demonsiration Project Construction 1.00% 9/4:2014 1,400,000 - 3,400,000 -
Infiow and Infiltration Demonstration Project 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 450,000 - 430,000
Creekside Station and Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 0.75% 93/2015 - 1,050,000 . 1,050,000
WWTF Shidge Management Improvement 0.75% 932015 3.350,000 - 3,350,000
1&1 Demonstratior. Project Construction 0.75% 93,2015 - 3,200,000 - 3,200,000
High Voltage Substation Retrofit 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 650,000 - 650.000
Water District Fund:
Parker Blvd and Treatment Plant Flow Merter 1.00% 9/4/2014 1,850,000 - 1,850,000 -
Kenmore, Chelsea and Green Acres Storage Tank 1.00% 9/42014 1.600.000 - 1,600,000
Delaware Rd from Deerhurst Blvd io Brighton 1.00% 9542014 3,900,000 3,900,000
North Youngmann Commerce Center 1.00% 942014 700,000 - 700,000 -
Parker Blvd and Treatment Plant Flow Meter 0.75% 9/3:2015 - 1,725,000 - 1,725,000
Kenmore, Chelsea and Green Acres Storage Tank 0.75% 932015 - 1,500,000 . 1.500.000
Delaware Rd from Deerhurst Blvd w Brighton 0.73% 9/3201= - 3,750,000 . 3,750,000
North Youngmann Commerce Center 0.75% 9/3.2015 630,000 650,000
Cleaning & Painting 0.75% 9/3/2015 - 2,050,000 - 2,050,000
Drainage Distriet Fund:
Dupont' Desmond Drainage Line 1.00% 9/42014 1,325,000 - 1,323,000
Two Mile Creek Bank Stahilization Improvements 1.00% 9/42014 750,000 - 750,000 -
Dupont Desmond Drainage Ling 0.73% 932013 - 1,225.000 - 1,225,000
Two Mile Creek Bank Stabilization Improvements 0.75% 9320135 - 700,000 - 700,000
Total $20,100,000 $§ 21,400,000 $ 20.100,000 $21,400,000
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11. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Summary of Changes in Long-Term Debt—The following is a summary of changes in long-term

debt for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Balance Balance

1/1/2014 Increases Decreases 12/31/2014
Serial bonds $ 39,287,722 $ $ 2,036,366 $ 37,251,356
EFC notes payable - 6,819,553 - 6,819,553
Due to employees' retirement system 200,258 - 63,683 136,575
Landfill closure

and post closure liability 5,553,050 - 80,820 5,472,230

Compensated absences 389,158 29,030 21,910 396,278
Other postemployment benefits 65,384,752 19,216,636 5,858,763 78,742,625
Capital lease 2,121,585 - 121,690 1,999,895

Totals

$ 112,936,525 §26,065219 $ 8,183,232 § 130,818,512

Serial Bonds—The Town borrows money in order to acquire land or equipment or construct
buildings and improvements. This enables the cost of these capital assets to be borne by the present
and future taxpayers receiving the benefit of the capital assets. The bonds are full faith and credit debt

of the Town.

A summary of bonded indebtedness transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014 follows:

Year of
Issue/ Interest Balance Balance
Description Maturity  Rate (%) 1/1/2014  Additions Reductions  12/31/2014
General Fund:
General public improvements 1999/2014 594% $§ 200,000 § - $ 200,000 $ -
General public improvements 2004/2018 3.47% 400,000 - 100,000 300,000
Gengral public improvements 2010/2025 2.00-3.00% 625,000 - 175,000 450,000
Highway Fund—Town Outside Village Fund:
Various highway projects 2004/2018 3.47% 50,000 - 50,000 .
Various highway projects 2010/2025 2.00-3.00% 1,010,000 - 140,000 870,000
Sewer District Fund:
Increase and improvements 2010/2025 2.00-3.00% 3,965,000 - 285,000 3,680,000
Increase and improvements 2012/2042 0.24-4.10% 20,496,366 - 576,366 19,920,000
Increase and improvements 2013/2042 0.364.76% 10,216,356 - 285,000 9,931,356
Water District Fund:
Increase and improvements 2004/2018  3.47% 375,000 75,000 300,000
Improvements 2010/2025 2.00-3.00% 975,000 - 75,000 900,000
Drainage District:
Improvements 2010/2025 2.00-3.00% 975,000 - 75,000 900,000
Total governmental activities $ 39,287,722 § - $ 2,036,366 § 37,251,356
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EFC Notes Payable—EFC Notes Payable represents proceeds from FEnvironmental Facilities
Corporation (“EFC”) loan agreements. The proceeds are used for the Parker-Fries Interceptor sewer
replacement project, a four-phase construction project, which began in 2010. Upon completion of
cach phase of the project, the notes are subsequently converted to serial bonds. Between 2010 and
2012 the Town released $25,422,439 of phase I funds, made principal payments of $4,400,000,
deposited $38,926 to a construction fund, and converted the phase I liability of $21,061,366 to serial
bonds. Between 2012 and 2013 the Town released $7,371.127 of phase II funds, deposited
52,768,849 1o a construction find, incurred $76,380 of delivery date expenses, and converted the
phase II liability of $10,216,356 1o serial bonds. During 2014 the Town released $6.,819.553 of phase
I funds, which are expected to be converted to serial bonds during the 2015 fiscal year, Phase IV is
anticipated to begin in 2013 with an estimated cost of $14,500,000.

A summary of the changes in notes payable for the year ended December 31, 2014 follows:

Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Additions Payments 12/31/2014
Capital Projects Fund $ - S 6,819,553 § - $ 6.819.553

Due to Employees’ Retirement System—Under Chapter 260 of the Laws of 2004 of the Siate of New
York, the Town had the option to amortize, or spread out, over a 10 year period certain portions of
their pension contribution bills. The Town exercised this option for its pension contribution bill paid
during the year ended December 31, 2006. The amount amortized carries at a rate of interest set by
the State Comptroller, currently 5%. There are two installments remaining on the 2006 amortization.

Landfill Closure and Post Closure Liability—State and federal laws and regulations require the
Town to place a final cover on its landfill when closed and perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Both closure and post-closure care costs
will be paid in the furure. However, accounting rules and regulations require the Town 1o report a
portion of these closure and post-closure care costs as a long-term liability in each period based on
landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date. The $5,472,230 reported as landfill closure and
post-closure care liability at December 31, 2014 represents the cumulative amount reported to date
based on 100% capacity of the landfill as the Town is not accepting additional solid waste. This
amount is estimated based on what it would cost to perform all closure and post-closure care in 2014.
The Town expended $80,820 in the current year relating to closure and post-closure activities. As of
December 31, 2014, the Town is still awaiting a decision from the Army Corps of Engineers to
determine final closure procedures. Actual cost may vary due 1o inflation, changes in technology, or
changes in regulations.

Compensated Absences—As explained in Note 1, the Town records the value of compensated
absences, The annual budgets of the general and special revenue funds provide funding for these
benefits as they become payable. The value recorded in the government-wide financial statements at
December 31, 2014, for governmental activities is $396,278. This amount has been recorded as a
noncurrent liability since payment of compensated absences is dependent upon many factors,
therefore, timing of future pavments is not readily determinable.

Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) Obligation—As explained in Note 7, the Town provides
health insurance coverage for retirees. The Town’s annual postemployment benefit (“OPEB™) cost is
calculated based in the annual required contributions of the employer, an amount actuarially
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial
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Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The estimated long-term
OPEB liability is estimated to be $78,742,625 at December 31, 2014.

Capital Lease—The Town entered into a long-term capital lease to finance an energy performance
project. The outstanding balance at December 31, 2014 was $1,999,895. Refer to Note 9 for
additional information related to the Town’s capital lease.

The following is a maturity schedule of the Town’s indebtedness:

Due to Landfill

Employees' Closure and Other
Serial EFC Notes Retirement Post Closure Compensated Postemployment  Capital

Bonds Payable System Liability Absences Benefits leases Total
2015 $ 1,791,356 3 - $ 66947 S - b 19,814 $ - $ 126993 $ 2,005,110
2016 1,740,000 6,819,553 69,628 - - - 132,527 8,761,708
2017 1,755,000 - . - - - 138,302 1,893,302
2018 1,795,000 - - - . . 144,328 1,939,328
2019 1,600,000 - - - - - 150,617 1,750,617
2020-2024 7,550,000 . - - - - 857,442 8,407,442
2025-2029 5,740,000 - - - - . 449,686 6,189,686
2030-2034 5,575,000 . - . - . - 5,575,000
2035-2039 5,950,000 - - - - - - 5,950,000
2040-2042 3,755,000 - - - - - - 3,755,000
Various - - - 5,472,230 376,464 78,742,625 - 84,591,319

$ 37,251,356 $ 6,819,553 $ 136,575 § 5472230 § 396,278 $ 78,742,625 § 1,999.895 $ 130,818,512

The interest requirement for the Town’s outstanding serial bonds is as follows:

Year Amount

2015 $ 1,084,609
2016 1,058,910
2017 1,031,730
2018 1,002,312
2019 972,989

2020-2024 4,391,114
2025-2029 3,412,245
2030-2034 2,443,796
2035-2039 1,368,465
2040-2042 262,395

$ 17,028,564
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12. NET POSITION AND FUND BALANCE

The government wide financial statements utilize a net assets presentation, Net position is categorized
as net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

o Net Investment in Capital Assets—This category groups all capital assets, including
infrastructure, into one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the
outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduce the balance in this category.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 5 144,185,318
Related debt:

Serial bonds issued {37.251,356)

EFC notes payable {6.819,533)

Capital lease (1.999.895)

Bond anticipation notes issued for capital assets (21,400,000)

Unspent proceeds from bond anticipation notes 4,524,593

Debt issued and used for capital assets (62,946,21 1)

Net investment in capital assets S 81,239.107

®  Restricted Net Position—This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed
by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

*  Unrestricted Net Position—This category represents net position of the Town not restricted
for any project or other purpose.

In the fund financial statements, nonspendable amounts represent net current financial resources that
cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form or legally or contractuaily required to

be maintained intact. Nonspendable fund balances maintained by the Town at December 31, 2014
include:

© Prepaid Items— Represents amounts prepaid to vendors and employees that are applicable 1o
future accounting periods. At December 31, 2014 the General Fund, General—Town Outside
Village Fund, Highway—Town Outside Village Fund, Sewer District Fund, Water Distnict
Fund, and Toral Nonrmajor Funds reported prepaid item amounts of $420,682, 768,493,
$155,420, $177,233, $128,154, and $152,694, respectively.

» Inventory—Represents the portion of fund balance composed of inventory. This balance is
nonspendable as the inventory does not represent an available resource. At December 31,
2014 the Water District Fund reported inventory amounts of $633,633.
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In the fund financial statements, restricted fund balances are amounts with external restrictions
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions and enabling legislation. Restricted
fund balances maintained by the Town at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

Equipment
and capital Public Special
Improvements _ Repairs  Leachate Safety Retirement Grants Total
General $ 972426 § 52246 § - $ - $ 918,637 § - $ 1,943,309
General—Town Outside Village Fund 460,341 - - 716,480 587,928 - 1,764,749
Highway—Town Outside Village Fund 179,555 . - - 330,709 510,264
Special Grants Fund - - - - - 1,261,861 1,261,861
Sewer District Fund 695,600 339463 97,505 - - - 1,132,568
‘Water District Fund 438,479 2,021,763 - - - 2,460,242
Total Nonmajor Funds 372,852 - - - - - 372,852
Total $ 3119253 $2,413472 $97,505 $ 716,480 $ 1,837,274 $1,261,861 § 9,445 845

o Equipment and Capital Improvements—Represenis funds accumulated to finance all or part
of the cost of construction, reconstruction or acquisition of specific items or types of capital
improvements or acquisition of specific items or typcs of equipment.

o Repairs—Represents funds accumulated to pay the cost of certain repairs of capital
improvements or equipment. The repairs must be of a type not recurring annually or at

shorter intervals.

o Leachate—Represents funds to be used for payment of unexpected sewer problems at the
landfill.

o Public Safety—Represents funds to be used for police and public safety expenditures.
e Retirement—Represents funds to be used for the payment of retirement contributions.
o Special Grants—Represents funds to be used for community development.
In the fund financial statements, commitments are amounts that are subject to a purpose constraint

imposed by a formal action of the Town’s highest level of decision-making anthority. As of
December 31, 2014, the Town has no committed fund balance.
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In the fund financial statements, assigned amounts are su
an intended use established by the Town Board, or by
of the assignment must be narrower than the purpose o

bject to a purpose constraint that represents
their designated body or official. The purpose
f the general fund, and in funds other than the

general fund, assigned fund balance represents the residual amount of fund balance. Assigned fund
balances maintained by the Town at December 31, 2014 are shown as follows:

Subsequent
Years' Public Specific
Expenditures Encumbrances Safety Use Total
General $ 1,900,000 S 121,677 § - $ . 2,021,677
General—Town Outside Village Fund 1,612,000 74.380 12,712 3,248,984 4,948,076
Highway— Town Outside Village Fund 138.000 103,530 - 877.590 1,119,120
Sewer District Fund 2,550,000 160,380 - 3,469,034 6,179,414
Water Distriet Fund 300,000 80.102 - 3,987.617 4,367,719
Total Nonmajor Funds 800,000 20,784 _ - 1.677.869 2.498,653
Total $ 7300000 $ 560,853 § 12712 S 13261094 $ 21,134,659

¢ Assigned to Subsequent Year Expenditures—Represents funds to be used to assist in
supporting the subsequent year authorized appropriations.

» Assigned to Encumbrances—Represents funds accumulated for commitments related to
unperformed contracts or purchase orders for goods or services.

* Assigned to Public Safety—Represents funds that mana

safety.

gement intends to use towards public

s  Assigned to Specific Use—Represents remaining fund balance of the special revenue funds.

Unassigned fund balance represents the residual classification of the government’s General Fund
surplus and Capital Projects Fund deficit. As of December 31, 2014, the unassigned General Fund
balance is $3,071,892 and the unassigned Capital Projects Fund deficit is $16,301,570.

If the Town must use funds for emergency expenditures the Town Board shall authorize the
Supervisor to expend funds first from funds classified as nonspendable (if funds become available)
then restricted funds. The use of committed and assigned funds will occur after the exhaustion of
available restricted funds. Finally, if no other fund balances are available the Town will use
unassigned fund balance,
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13. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivables and payables are short-term in nature and exist because of temporary advances
or payments made on behalf of other funds. The composition of interfund balances as of December
31, 2014 is as follows:

Interfund
Fund Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds:
General Fund 3 206,385 § -
General—Town Outside Village Fund 235,665 5
Highway—Town Qutside Village Fund 53,280
Sewer District Fund 50,388
Water District Fund 19,614 -
Capital Projects Fund 1,530,429 1,530,429
Other Governmental Funds 48,462 -
Fiduciary Funds:
Agency Fund - 613,794
Total $ 2144223 § 2,144,223

The outstanding balances between funds result from payments made on behalf of other funds or
temporary advances. All of these balances are expected to be collected/paid within the subsequent
year.

The Town made the following operating transfers during 2014:

Transfers in:
Highway—
Town Sewer Water Capital Other Self Workers
Ouiside  District  District Projects  Governmental Insurance Compensation
General Village Fund  Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Transfers out:

General 3 - $ - $§ - 3 - $ 558,688 § - $268,800 $ 630,000 $1,457,488
General—Town

Outside Village Fund - - - 100,000 29,119 - 192,600 525,000 846,719
Highway—Town

Outside Village Fund - - - . 441,112 67,700 273,000 781,812
Sewer District Fund - - - - 872,335 118,700 239,400 1,230,435
Water District Fund - - - 471,609 - 78,300 168,000 717,909
Capital Projects Fund 201,661 3,999 63,249 58,524 - 15,086 - - 342,519
Other Governmental

Funds - - - R 154,550 - 73,900 264,600 493,050

Total $201,661 S 3,999 $63,249 $158524 $2527413 $ 15086 $800,000 $ 2,100,000 $5,869,932

Transfers are used to move various fund revenues among funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations. Interfund transfers are used primarily to support capital project expenditures, the Self
Insurance Fund and the Workers Compensation Fund. They are classified as charges for services
within the Self Insurance Fund and the Workers Compensation Fund.
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14. AGENCY FUND

An agency fund exists for employee withholding and temporary deposit funds. The following is a
summary of the Agency Fund for the year ended December 31, 2014:

Balance Balance
1/1/2014 Additions Daductions 12/31/2014
ASSETS
Cash $776,269 5 163,035,558 5 163,099,746 § 712,081
Accounts receivable 121,600 10,603,859 10,725,439 -
Due from other funds - 107,127,677 107,127,677 -
Total assets $ 897,869 § 280,767,094 S 280952,882 § 712,081
LIABILITIES
Agency liabilities $ 89206 $ 56995317 % 356986236 § 98,287
Due to other funds 808,663 29,594,311 29,789,180 613,794
Toual liabilities $897,869 S 86,589.628 § 86,775416 § 712,081

15. LABOR RELATIONS

The majority of Town emplovees are represented by three bargaining units. The Salaried Workers
Association (“SWA”) and the Hourly Employees® Association (“HEA™) had contracts in place
through December 31, 2011. The Tonawanda Police Club had a contract in place until December 31,
2008, and issued a memorandum of agreement for January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2012.
During the 2014, the Board approved salaries and rates of pay for employees temporarily not covered
by a collective bargaining agreement. The remaining employees are governed by Town Board
policies.

16. COMMITMENTS

Encumbrances—Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for
goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance accounting is
utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to
facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and encumbrances lapse at
vear end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory contract
is expended in the next vear) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent year’s budget
pursuant 1o state regulations.

The Town considers encumbrances to be significant for amounts that are encumbered in excess of
$100.000. As of December 31, 2014, the Town reported no significant encumbrances.
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17. CONTINGENCIES

Litigation/claims payable—The Town is exposed to various risks of losses related to torts, theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Town reports
all of its risk management activities in its Internal Service Fund. Claims expenditures and liabilities
are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably
estimated.

At December 31, 2014, the judgments and claims liability and the workers’ compensation liability are
recorded within the Town’s Internal Service Fund. The workers compensation liability at December
31, 2014 reflects the actuarial analysis of the projected liability. Changes in the reported liabilities
since January 1, 2013 are presented below:

Liability at Adjustments Liability at

1/1/2014 Claims and Payments  12/31/2014
Judgments and claims  $ 375778 $ 1,707,609 $ 1,283,387 § 800,000
Workers' compensation 1,398,775 § 2,361,926 2,241,017 1,519,684

Liability at Adjustments Liability at

1/1/2013 Claims and Payments  12/31/2013
Judgments and claims  $ 398,563 § 142,183 § 164,968 $ 375,778
Workers' compensation 2,941,529 236,683 1,779,437 1,398,775

At December 31, 2014, the judgments and claims liability has been reasonably estimated to be a
range of $800,000-$1,400,000. The aforementioned estimates range along a continuum from probable
to reasonably possible to remote.

Assessments—The Town is a defendant in various litigation under Article 7 of the Real Property Tax
Law of the State of New York to review tax assessments. While the Town vigorously defends
assessments, the likelihood of success is on a case-by-case basis, and is dependent upon many factors
including market values and appraised amounts. No potential amount or potential range of loss is
determinable. Management believes that level of such potential loss, if any, would be immaterial and
no provisions have been made within the financial statements.

Grants—In the normal course of operations, the Town receives grant funds from various Federal and
State agencies. These grant programs are subject to audit by agents of the granting authority, the
purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions precedent to the granting of funds. Any
disallowed expenditures resulting from such audits could become a liability of the governmental
funds. While the amount of any expenditure that may be disallowed cannot be determined at this
time, management expects any amounts to be immaterial.

Pollution Remediation Obligations—On July 3, 2000, the Town was issued notice of intent to
modify State pollutant discharge elimination system permif, Town of Tonawanda WWTP (T)
Tonawanda, Erie County DEC No. 9-1464-00116/00004 SPDES No. NY-002 6395 by the New York
State Department of Environmental Conservation (‘NYSDEC”). As part of the notice the Town
submitted a plan for the abatement of the overflow of sanitary sewer discharge and received a
response from the NYSDEC in November 2010. The NYSDEC has restarted the process, requiring
additional information from the Town. The Town has therefore submitted a four year plan. During
2011, the NYSDEC issued an order on consent whereby the Town shall continue to implement a
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18.

demonstration project. As of December 31, 2014 the Town is unable to determine the range or the
likelihood of any potential liability.

Other—The Town is involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of its operations. The Town
believes that its ultimate liability, if any, in connection with these matters will not have a material
effect the Town’s financial condition or results of operations.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 29, 2013, which is the date the financial
statements are available for issuance, and have determined there are no subsequent events that require
disclosure under generally accepted accounting principles.

LR B R R ERE]
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Funding Progress—Other Postemployment Benefits Plan
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Ratio of
Acturial UAAL to
Acturial Accrued Unfunded Budget

AAL Funded Covered Covered

Measurement  Value of Liability
("UAAL") Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date Assets ("AAL"
Asof12/31/14  § - $ 211,978,256 $ 211,978,256 0.0% § 32,969,153 643.0%
Asof 12/31/13 = 203,756,403 203,756,403  0.0% 31,649,406 643.8%
Asof 12/31/12 - 194,569,644 194,569,644 0.0% 31,856,485 610.8%
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual—General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other property tax items
Departmental income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeitures
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Miscellaneous
Interfund revenue
State aid

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government support
Public safety
Healih
Transportation
Economic assistance and opportunity
Culiure and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Debt service:
Principal
[nierest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances*

Fund balances—beginning
Fund balances—ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$13,631,281 $13,631,281 $13,670,045 $ 38,764
1.259.000 1,259,000 1,254,620 (4,380)
5,486,275 5,490,275 4,284,782 (1,205,493)
40,644 40,644 51,919 11,275
330,000 330,000 274,936 (55,064)
125.200 125,200 124,473 (727
1,406,000 1,406,000 1,573,801 167,801
- 71,278 756,962 685,684
24,377 32.377 30,192 (2.183)
3,443,800 3,443,800 3,503,759 59,959
1,040,674 1,068,799 1,250,102 181,303
26,787.251 26,898,654 26,775,591 (123.063)
5,037,206 5,259,534 4,731,988 327,546
1,213,131 1,197,220 1,101,172 96,048
1.254,703 1,250,750 1,205,041 45.709
942,179 941,479 913,195 28,284
141,200 141,200 120,008 21,192
9,898,082 10,216,035 9,112,262 1,103,773
843,696 866,693 856,269 10,424
8,119,300 7.519,400 6,775,463 743,935
588,684 588.684 588,682 2
147,989 147,989 121,488 26,301
28,186,372 28,128,984 25,325,570 2,603,414
(1,399.121)  (1,230,330) 1,250,021 2,480,351
- . 201,660 201,660
(1,473,800)  (1,779.900)  (1,457.488) 322,412
(1,473,800) (1,779,900) (1.255,828) 524,072
(2,872,921)  (3,010,230) (5.807) 3,004,423
7,463,367 7.463.367 7,463,367 -
S 4,590,446 $ 4,433,137 5 7.437.560 S 3,004,423

* The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of
fund balance and re-appropriation of prior year encumbrances.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual—General—Town Outside Village Fund

Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other property tax items
Non-property tax items
Departmental income
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits

Sale of property and compensation for loss

Miscellaneous
Interfund revenue
State aid
Federal aid

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current:
General government support
Public safety
Health
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

OTBER FINANCING USES
Transfers out
Total other financing uses

Net change in fund balances*

Fund balances—beginning
Fund balances—ending

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
$11,345,746  $11,345,746  $11,384,328 § 38,582
1,025,000 1,025,000 1,081,107 56,107
7,750,000 7,750,000 7,895,384 145,384
63,550 356,650 159,027 (197,623)
216,000 242,440 299,354 56,914
171,600 171,600 168,699 (2,901)
498,500 498,500 565,947 67,447
- 18,981 98,019 79,038
- 6,816 4,837 (1,979)
352,500 352,500 306,876 {45,624)
585,199 615,454 661,402 45,948
- 45,189 51,693 6,504
22,008,095 22,428,876 22,676,673 247,797
1,310,544 1,308,373 1,252,570 55,803
12,993,924 13,396,986 12,619,014 777,972
8,990 9,390 9,365 25
187,637 188,046 109,028 79,018
8,663,100 8,607,800 7,409,358 1,198,442
5,075 5,075 5,075 -
3,713 3,713 3,713 -
23,172,983 23,519,383 21,408,123 2,111,260
(1,164,888) (1,090,507) 1,268,550 2,359,057
(932,600) (957,600) {846,719) 110,881
(932,600) (957,600) {846,719) 110,881
(2,097,488) (2,048,107) 421,831 2,469,938
7,059,487 7,059,487 7,059,487 -
$ 4,961,999 § 5011380 § 7481318 § 2,469,938

* The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of
fund balance and re-appropriation of prior year encumbrances.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

.54 -



TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual—Highway—Town Outside Village Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

REVENUES
Real property taxes
Other property tax items
Non-property tax items
Intergovernmental charges
Use of money and property
Licenses and permits
Sale of property and compensation for loss
Interfund revenue
State aid

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Transportation
Employee benefits
Debt service:
Principa!
Interest
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances*

Fund balances~—beginning
Fund balances—ending

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with

Original Final Actual Final Budgﬁ
$ 6,125,341 S 6,125,341 5 6,145,698 ) 20,357
526,000 526,000 570,415 44,413
700,000 700,000 700,000 -
115,000 310,000 116,282 (193,718)
5,000 3,000 3,105 (1.895)
- - 460 460
- 37,883 88.484 30,601
488,000 488,000 488,000 -
386,551 386,551 431,911 45,360
8,345,892 8.578,775 8.544,353 (34,420)
5,220,399 5,443,152 5,170,099 273,053
2.734,000 2,514,400 2,171,344 343,056
313,000 315,000 190,000 125,000
37,907 37,907 26,906 11,001
8,307,306 8.310,439 7,558,349 752,110
38,586 268,316 986,006 717,690
- 2 3,999 3,999
(490.700) (806,900} (781,812) 25,088
{490,700) (806,900) (777,813) 29,087
(452,114) (338.584) 208,193 746,777
1.576,611 1,576,611 1.376,611 -
S 1,124,497 S 1,038,027 S 1,784,804 $ 746,777

* The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of
fund balance and re-appropriation of prior yvear encumbrances.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Budget and Actual—Sewer District Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 2,466,989 § 2,466,989 § 2,466,980 § -
Departmental income 8,200,000 8,200,000 8,191,359 (8,641)
Intergovernmental charges 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,998,291 {1,709)
Use of money and property 13,200 13,200 12,767 (433)
Sale of property and compensation for loss - - 38,930 38,930
Total revenues 12,680,189 12,680,189 12,708,336 28,147
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Home and community services 9,149,173 8,911,391 8,079,853 831,538
Employee benefits 3,037,300 3,040,400 2,543,028 497,372
Debt service:
Principal 1,799,299 1,799,299 1,149,299 650,000
Interest 885,429 885,429 672,501 212,928
Total expenditures 14,871,201 14,636,519 12,444,681 2,191,838
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures (2,191,012) (1,956,330) 263,655 2,219,985
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - 63,249 63,249
Transfers out (568,100} {791,499) (1,230,435) (438,936)
Total other financing sources (uses) (568,100} (791,499) (1,167,186) (375,687)
Net change in fund balances* (2,759,112) (2,747,829) (903,531) 1,844,298
Fund balances—beginning 8,392,746 8,392,746 8,392,746 -
Fund balances—ending $ 5,633,634 § 5644917 § 7489215 § 1,844,298

* The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as an appropriation (i.e., spenddown) of
fund balance and re-appropriation of prior year encumbrances.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—

Budget and Actual—Water District Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Departmental income $ 9,850,768 S 9.850,768 § 9.267.397 § (583,171)
[ntergovernmental charges - - 11,364 11,364
Use of money and property 88,200 88,200 97,193 8,993
Sale of property and compensation for loss - - 27,375 27,375
Miscellaneous - - 70 70
Total revenues 9,938,968 9,938,968 9,403,399 (5333.369)
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Home and community services 6,647,647 6,924,748 6,124,516 800,232
Emplovee benefits 2,206,400 2,206,400 1,835,140 371,260
Debt service:
Principal 575,000 350,000 150,000 200,000
Interest 276,872 276,872 115,872 161,000
Total expenditures 9,705,919 9,758,020 8,225,528 1,532,492
Excess of revenues
over expenditures 233,049 180,948 1,178,071 997,123
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 100,000 100,000 158,524 58,524
Transfers out (821,300) (735,710) (717.909) 17,801
Total other financing sources (uses) (721,300) (633,710) (539,385) 76,325
Net change in fund balances* (488,251) (454,762) 618,686 1,073,448
Fund balances—beginning 6.971,064 6,971,064 6,971,064 -
Fund balances—ending $ 6482813 $ 6,516,302 S 7,589,750 § 1,073,448

*  The net change in fund balances was included in the budget as a re-appropriation of prior year

encumbrances.
The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Note to the Required Supplementary Information
Year Ended December 31, 2014

1. BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Basis of Accounting—Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles for all governmental funds, except the Special Grants Fund and the
Capital Projects Fund, are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Special Grants Fund and the Capital Projects Fund
appropriations are not included in the Town’s annual budget. Instead appropriations are approved
through a Town Board resolution at the grant/project’s inception and lapse upon
completion/termination of the grant/project.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department. The Town’s department
heads may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between
departments require the approval of the Town Board. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the
level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the department level.

Appropriations in all budgeted funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year even if they have related
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for
goods or services (i.e., purchase orders, contracts, and commitments). Encumbrance accounting is
utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to
facilitate effective cash planning and control. While all appropriations and encumbrances lapse at
year end, valid outstanding encumbrances (those for which performance under the executory contract
is expected in the next year) are re-appropriated and become part of the subsequent year’s budget
pursuant to state regulations.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Combining Balance Sheet—Nonmajor Governmental Funds

December 31, 2014
Special Revenue Total
Garbage Street Nenmajor
and Refuse Lighting Fire Drainage Governmental
District District Protection District Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1901491 S 485580 § 20,094 % 514,988 § 2922153
Restricted cash 370,702 - - 2,150 372,852
Receivables 68,235 - 5.070 73,305
Due from other funds 43,142 - - 5,320 48,462
Prepaid items 141.787 . - 10,907 152,6%4
Total assets § 2525337 § 4853580 § 20,094 § 538,435 §  3,569.466
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable S 123,351 % 125893 $ - $ 1,660 S 250,904
Accrued liabitities 255,192 - . 17,170 272,362
Intergovernmental payables 7,718 8,177 6,106 - 22,001
Total liabilities 386,261 134,070 6,106 18,830 545,267
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 141,787 - 10,907 132,694
Restricted 370,702 . - 2.130 372,852
Assigned 1,626,607 351,510 13,988 506,548 2,498,653
Total fund balances 2,135,096 351,510 13,988 519,605 3,024,199
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 2525357 & 485580 § 20,094 § 538435 § 3,569,466




TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances—
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Special Revenue Total
Garbage Street Nonmajor
and Refnse Lighting Fire Drainage  Governmental
District Distriet Protection District Funds
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 7,601,948 $ 1,257,900 §$ 722990 § 748,752  $ 10,331,590
Departmental income 46,880 - - - 46,880
Use of money and property 3,176 546 205 537 4,464
Sale of property and compensation for loss - - - 8,240 8,240
Total revenues 7,652,004 1,258,446 723,195 757,529 10,391,174
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety - . 747,987 - 747,987
Transportation - 1,548,476 - - 1,548,476
Home and community services 5,051,599 - - 282,592 5,334,191
Employee benefits 2,082,811 - - 170,705 2,253,516
Debt service:
Principal - - - 75,000 75,000
Interest - - - 43,469 43,469
Total expenditures 7,134,410 1,548,476 747,987 571,766 10,002,639
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 517,594 (290,030) (24,792) 185,763 388,535
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - - - 15,085 15,085
Transfers out (318,700) - - (174,350) (493,050)
Total other financing sources and uses (318,700) . - (159,265) {477,963)
Net change in fund balances 198,894 (290,030) (24,792) 26,498 (89,430)
Fund balances - beginning 1,940,202 641,540 38,780 493,107 3,113,629
Fund balances - ending $ 2,139,096 $ 351,510 § 13988 § 519,605 $ 3,024,199
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FEDERAL AWARDS INFORMATION






TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Federal Pass-Through

CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/ Program Title (1) Number {(2) Number Expenditures (3)
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT:
Direct programs;

Community Development Block Grants—Entitlement Grants 14.218 n/a 3 1,380,837
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 1,380,837
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Passed through NYS Department of Justice:

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 n/a 8,763

Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738  2011-DJ-BX-2507 13,141
TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 21,904

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY:
Passed through NYS Department of Homeland Security:
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 n/a 8,152

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 8,152
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 3 1,410,893

The notes to the financial schedule are an integral part of this schedule.
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended December 31, 2014

L

3.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the Town of Tonawanda, New York (the “Town™) and is presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Praofit Organizations. The following notes were identified on the schedule of expenditures of federal

awards:

(1) Includes all federal award programs of the Town of Tonawanda, New York.

(2) Source: Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance.

(3) Prepared under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and
includes all federal award programs.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principle contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost
Principles for State, Local & Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditure are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in
prior years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available.

RECONCILIATION OF FEDERAL AID

A reconciliation to the basic financial statements is available.

ok ok ok ok &
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Drescher & Malecki LLP

3083 William Street, Suite 5

Cheektowaga, New York 14227 oy
Telephone: 716.565.2299 & Malecki

Fax: 716.565.2201

Cerlified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Supervisor and Town Board
Town of Tonawanda, New York

We bave audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental -
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Tonawanda,
New York (the “Town™) as of and for the year ended December 3 1, 2014, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Town’s basic financial statements, and have issued our
repott thereon dated June 29, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town’s internal
control over financial reporting (“internal control”) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Town’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakrness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conirol over
financial reporting that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town’s financia! statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mok & ML A P

June 29, 2015

66 -



Drescher & Malecki LLP
3083 William Street, Suite 5
Cheektowaga, New York 14227
Telephone: 716.565.2299

Fax: 716.565.2201

Certified Public Accountants

INDEFENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Honorable Supervisor and Town Board
Town of Tonawanda, New York:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Town of Tonawanda, New York’s (the “Town™) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Town’s major federal
programs for the year ended December 31, 2014. The Town’s major federal programs are identified in the
summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Town’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local

Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable‘asstirance about whether noncompliancé with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Town’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinjon, the Town complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the
year ended December 31, 2014.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of compliance, we considered the Town’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program as a basis for
designing auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circurastances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed 10 identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our

testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mad 2 ML P

June 29, 2015
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Part I. Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements:
Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Material weakness(es) identified? __ Yes _¥ No
2. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? __ Yes _ ¥ None reported
3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted? __ Yes ¥ No
Federal Awards:
Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified
Internal control over major programs:
4. Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes _¥ No
5. Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered
to be material weaknesses? __ Yes _ ¥ None reported
6. Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 (section .510(a))? __ Yes _¥ None
7. The Town's major programs were:
Name of Federal Program CFDA Number
Community Development Block Grant 14.218
8. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs? $ 300,000
9. Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _ ¥ Yes ___No
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TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Part II. Financial Statement Findings Section
No findings noted.
Part I1II. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs Section

No findings noted.

~70 -



TOWN OF TONAWANDA, NEW YORK
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Year Ended December 31, 2014
(Follow-up of December 31, 2013 findings)

No matters were reported.
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